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Church was unsuccessful. Later, a hall in Spruance City was secured, fitted up
as a chapel and meetings were held once a month. In 1881, the Odd Fellow’s
Hall was secured for the services. In 1883, Bishop Thomas A. Becker pur-
chased the old Presbyterian frame church, during the rectorship of Father
George S. Bradford, who was also rector of Holy Cross Church at Dover. The
dedication service was held on Sun, June 10, 1883. The service was con-
ducted by Bishop Becker assisted by Father Bradford. High Mass was cele-
brated by the Rev. B. J. Keiley. A concert was given in the evening by St.
Peter’s choir of Wilmington. The church was named "St. Polycarps” in honor
of a bishop of Smyrna, Asia, who was martyred in the second century. The
stations of the cross were erected and blessed on Wed., Mar, 1, 1893, by the
Rev, E. J. Mealey. '

Until 1911, the rector of Holy Cross Church came to Smyrna twice a
month and offered Mass. Then, the burden became too great for the Dover
priest so one of the Salesian Fathers of Wilmington came by train and held
services twice a month. When this arrangement weakened, arrangements were
made for a priest from St. Joseph's Industrial School at Clayton to offer
Mass on the first and third Sundays of the month.

Early in 1918, Bishop John ]. Monaghan decided to sell St. Polycarp’s
Church to the Centennial M, E, Church, colored, and to build a new church
at Clayton. A site was purchased but owing to war-time conditions the erection
of a church was postponed. Bishop Monaghan decreed that St. Joseph’s Chapel
at the Industrial School should become the Parish Church,

Smyrna M, P. Church. A church site at the cor. of East and Methodist
Sts. was purchased on Mar. 18, 1845, from Samuel M. Fisler and a substantial
frame church was built. The church became defunct and was sold to the
Presbyterians in 1846. This church has had one of the most varied existences
of any church in Delaware. It has been consecrated to the service of the
Methodist Protestants, the Presbyterians, the Roman Catholics and the Metho-
dist Episcopalians.

A second congregation of Methodist Protestants was organized in 1923.
They were incorporated on July 3, 1923. During that month a church site at
Frazier and Union Sts. was purchased from Rowland Ford. A frame church
was then built. They struggled along with a heavy debt until 1930 after which
the building was sold. Later, members of the Pilgrim Holiness Church held
a revival here but there were not enough converts to organize a church.

Asbury Methodist Church (M.E.) at Smysna. In 1780, the Rev. Francis
Asbury preached in an orchard between Duck Creek Crossroads and Duck
Creek Village. The first Methodist services in Smyrna were held in the home
of James L. Stevenson by the Rev. Philip Cox. In 1786, a frame church was
built. The land was donated by Allen McLane. It was located on Church St,,
north of Mt. Vernon S8t., and was named “Asbury M. E. Church.”

Francis Asbury preached here on Nov. 29, 1789, on Sept. 13, 1790, and
on May 25, 1801. He attended Conference here on Sept. 11, 1792, and again
on Oct. 10, 1797, when yellow fever was raging in Philadelphia and the Con-
ference was transferred to Duck Creek. The church was enlarged in 1819 and
in 1823, Benjamin Coombs deeded more land for cemetery purposes.

On June 24, 1843, the congregation purchased from Samuel M. Fisler, for
$300.00, 62 perches of land on the n. w. side of Methodist St., now Mt. Vernon
St. The-erection of a brick church was started. The corner-stone was laid on
May 28, 1844. This building was used until 1869. On Dec. 11, 1869, the



church was seriously damaged by fire. “The services of a little fire-engine, be-
jonging to the town, proved invaluable on this occasion as the fire could not
be reached by water thrown from buckets.” Both the Presbyterians and the -
Episcopalians offered the use of their churches for worship. The Methodists
met in the Presbyterian Church while a new brick church was being erected.

The corner-stone of a new church was relaid on Oct. 7, 1871. It was
opened with a service on Feb. 4, 1872, conducted by the Revs. R. L. Dashiell
and A. Rittenhouse. It was dedicated on Nov. 24, 1872, by Bishop Foster.
During the 1870’s the Methodists could be baptized by immersion if they so
desired. On Mon., Sept. 10, 1877, a class was baptized in the Hoffecker mill-
pond, south of Smyrna,

In 1889, major improvements were made including an organ gallery,
library room, new pipe organ, rolled cathedral glass windows, altar enlarged,
new carpet and hard oil finish on the woodwork. On Apr. 27, 1890, the church
was reopened, with the Rev. George E. Reed, President of Dickinson College
preaching both morning and evening sermons. In 1934, further improvements
were made.

The Willard Wright Memorial organ and the Deagan chimes were dedi-
cated on Sun., Mar. 16, 1947, by Bishop Chas. W. Flint and the Rev. R. E.
Green, the pastor. The organ was a bequest from Willard Wright and the
chimes were a gift from Dr. and Mrs. C. J. Prickett in memory of the Revs.
R. K. Stephenson and J. W. Colona, former pastors. The old graveyard, on
Church St., is still used for interments.

The first Methodist camp-meeting in Kent County was held in a grove
three miles below Smyrna, on the road to Dover, in 1805.

Jerman’s M. E. Chapel at Smyrna. In the 1880’s, one of the problems of
sincere religious workers was to induce the less prosperous members of a
community to attend church. Pechaps it was pride but these persons seemed
reluctant to attend church services because they could not afford to dress as
well as their more prosperous neighbors. In an effort to reach these persons in
Smyrna, in 1880, Joshua T. Jerman purchased an old store building on Com-
merce St., the site of which is now included in the right-of-way of the Du Pont
Highway. Mr. Jerman had the building converted into a chapel, named it
“Mission Chapel” and a Sunday School was conducted by Mrs. Jerman, a mem-
ber of Asbury M. E. Church.

On May 1, 1891, the trustees of Asbury Church purchased a lot in Spru-
ance City and the chapel was moved to the new site, rebuilt, and named
“Jerman’s Chapel.” In 1902, under the will of Mr. Jerman, the building was
placed in the hands of three trustees together with a trust fund of $890.00 for
the maintenance of the building with the provision that the chapel be used for
Methodist meetings only. A short time later, the trustees, under the will,
turned the chapel and trust fund over to the trustees of Asbury Church. Sunday
School has always been held, first under the leadership of Mrs. Jerman and
then by members of Asbury Church. For a few years it was a preaching station
on the Smyrna Circuit. In 1914, during the pastorate of the Rev. Milton Mc-
Cann, the chapel was entirely rebuilt.

It was dedicated on May 16, 1915, by the Rev. Warren Brown assisted by
the Rev. Milton McCann, the pastor. The altar had been built entirely by Mr,
McCann. The Methodists ceased to hold meetings here in 1936.

The Wesleyan Methodisg Church at Smyrna, This congregation secured
the use of Jerman's Chapei-and started to hold meetings in 1936.
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with power.” That statement was Asbury’s way of saying that
the preaching was great, the singing and the testimonials tre-
mendous, and the soul-savings-beyond expectation.

From 1787 until 1791 the following preachers rode the
Dover Circuit: John Jarrell, Thomas S. Crew, James O, Crom-
well, Elders, Jacob Brish and Aaron Hutchinson, Pastors,
1789; Joseph Everett, Elder, Christopher Spry and Fredus
Aldridge, Pastors, 1790, and- Thomas Foster and Evans Rogers,
Pastors, 1791,

On September 12, 1792 the conference for the Philadelphia
District was again convened in Duck Creek Cross Roads. That
this meeting was held here for the third consecutive year is
indicative of the spiritual, social and physical importance of
the village. The Cross Roads was the largest settlement in the
Dover Circuit; sat aside two major roads; was located near
Green’s Landing (Smyrna Landing) where packets, schooners
and sloops eatly arrived and departed; contained the largest
Methodist congregations and meeting house in the area; had a
post office; was the site of several businesses and stores, and
boasted of two taverns—one in the village itself and the other
at ““old” Duck Creek.

The Cross Roads had also gained “the limelight” that year
by the action of the members of the General Assembly. In
those days that August body held their meetings in the Kent
County Court House. In 1792 that building was being repaired,
and in their coming and goings the assemblyman seriously
interrupted the work. This constant stoppage so irritated the
sheriff that he turned out the law-makers. This infuriated
them. In haste and in anger they came to the Cross Roads and
met in the Indian Head Tavern. There they resolved to make
the village the capital of the state. Later, however, calmer
thinking prevailed, and by the time that the legislative session
had ended, the resolution was repealed.

At the religious session concord reigned thus permitting
that body to accomplish a goodly amount of work. A report
was heard which recommended that the Ecclesiastical Council
Plan be dropped; that the Bishops consent to consider a Gen-
eral Conference Plan; and that the term of Presiding Elder be
eliminated. This body voted to endorse the recommendations.
The members also duly noted that the terms of elder, pastor,
preacher and reverend were being used interchangeable by all
classes and societies of people. Thus within a few years further
on from that date—all minutes show that the bearer-of-the-
good-news was being called pastor. Asbury notes ‘“We parted
with a good love feast, from which the gay and the worldly, at
least were excluded.”

Early Methodist preachers and historians wrote that the
Duck Creek Congregation experienced a great spiritual growth
and awakening begihning in 1792 and ending in 1795 when the
charge was visited with a great revival of teligion during the
early part of the latter year. Upon closer investigation to the
cause of the growth, this writer believes that he has discovered
the apparent reason for the increase. In the search two found
statements were the basis for the assumption, The records of
the Presbyterian Church show that their Reverend John
Miller died on July 22, 1791 and left the Cross Roads congre-
gation pastorless, while the Reverend Alexander G. Cummins,
the Episcopalian Historian reports that after the death of
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Reverend Sydenham (Parson) Thorne in 1793, the entire par--

ish of Duck Creek languished for many years.

If these are the two actual versions then we may assume
that Methodism filled a spiritual vacuum which was created
by the demise of two well known spiritual leaders. Then, too,
we must bear in mind the fact that the church or meeting
house was not only a spiritual center, but it was also the
social focal point of its day.

Modes and customs had not changed too rapidly from
1725 until 1795, and for many people, life was still hard and
cruel. Although there was an increase in population, many
persons moved west, still leaving widely scattered villages,
farms and so called plantations. Roads were mere lanes, sandy
and dry, or muddy and mired, as the weather occasioned.
Oxens were widely used as beasts of burden, with horses
reserved for those who travelled, or for the wealthy. Grain
was sown by hand, cut with a sickle and winnowed or cradled,
while other farm crops were produced under the most labori-
ous conditions. Most homes contained a spinning wheel and a
loom for the spinning and weaving of cloth. Shoes frequently
were manufactured and repaired at home, while each dwelling
contained at least one candle mold, butter churn and mold,
quilting frame and sausage grinder. The Circuit riding preach-
er, the visiting priest and the occasional visitor brought the
news of the outside world to the community which was dis-
cussed and debated upon whenever the congregation or parish-
ioners met. The tavern was the setting for politics.

Walter Fountain and George Pickering were the shepherds
of the flock in 1792. Very little is known about Reverend
Fountain, However Pastor Pickering’s life was quite note-
worthy. He was born in Talbot County, Maryland in 1769;
converted in 1787; assigned to Baltimore Conference in 1790,
and in 1792 was transferred to the Dover Circuit in the Phila-
delphia Conference. In 1793 he was sent to New England
where the Methodist Church was still in the formative stage.
Rev. Pickering served that area until his death in Waltham,
Massachusetts in 1846. For 56 years this man of Ged had
proclaimed the gospel, and at his demise it was written “he
was the oldest effective traveling preacher on the globe.”

The two aforementioned were followed in 1793 by William
Page and John Milburn. He only was returned in 1794,
Seventeen ninety-five saw the assignment of three ministers to
the circuit—William Hunter, a native of Tyrone, Ireland; Joseph
Jewell, later of Canadian fame; and William Jessup, native of
Sussex County, Delaware. It is assumed that they were sent as
the result of the great spring revival of 1795. Yet their joyous
endeavors were cut short. Church records and secular histories
are not too concise, but all indications point to the fact that
the area was visited by a plague or pestilence that year. An
unknown writer, writing in 1840 stated “In 1795 the charge
(Dover Circuit) was visited with a severe sickness and mortality
during the autumnal season.” By 1796 normal conditions
were returned and Reverends Joseph Smith and Isaac Robinson
were appointed.

The Philadelphia Conference had scheduled Philadelphia
as its conference site for 1797, but because of the prevelance
of yellow fever in that city the session was moved to Duck
Creek Cross Roads. Prior action at the other yearly conferences

had witnessed the reinstating of the office of Presldlng Elders.
When the meeting was called to order in the Cross Roads,
Bishop Asbury had the Presiding Elders to occupy the Presi-
dent’s chair. He wrote—“I appointed the Presiding Elders to
take my seat, and sat alone, because the hand of the Lord was
upon me. . ..I preached 3 sermons. . .on Friday 13 we arose,
I was much outdone, yet happy”. From that statement one
might infer that Asbury was not well at the time, and so by
using the elders to conduct the business sessions he conserved
his strength for the important task of proclaiming the gospel.
Yet one is not positive that such was the case. Among other
business conducted was: the appointment of the first Book
Committee to investigate the establishment of a concern for
the publication of Methodist writings; setting apart of eleven
persons for elders; election of three deacons; changes in the
discipline; and the appointment of preachers—Reverends
Joseph Witby and Benjamin Essex to the Dover Circuit.

It was noted in 1797 that Colonel Allen McLane, after
suffering many privations, had been appomted by an Act of
Congress, as the revenue collector for the Port of Wilmington.
Also that the shortened name of Duck Creek had almost re-
placed the official title of Duck Creek Cross Roads, and that
the settlement near the vicinity of the stream was generally
known as Old Duck Creek.

Thomas Jackson and Joseph Smith were the ministers in
1798, and Reverends Daniel Couch and Nathan Sawain were
the pastors while Christopher Spry was appointed as Presiding
Elder. On February 22, 1799 a notice was given to the Duck
Creek Society that a meeting would be held on March 4 of
that year for the purpose of “choosing and nominating” seven
men to serve as Trustees for Asbury Church, Duck Creek Cross
Roads. This statement points out the fact that the meeting
house had not had one trustee since its erection in 1786. By
investigation into the property customs of that day one finds
that the term “meeting-house” was generally applied to all
places of Methodist worship. A “church’ was the official name
given when the property was administered by the trustees,
and a “chapel” was the building built given and mostly main-
tained by the donor. Therefore one may logically assume that
Colonel and Mrs. Allen McLane were responsible for the care
and keeping of Duck Creek’s Meeting House. As he was absent
from the community and the congregation for extended peri-
ods of time due to his position in Wilmington, one cannot
help but assume that he could devote little time to his religious
property. Therefore ways and means had to be devised to
insure that the structure would remain in the hands of the
society. Therefore the call was made.

So on March 4, 1799 twenty men attended that historic
assemblage—James Stevenson, John Cole, James McDowell
(cabinetmaker), Israel Peterson (tanner), George Kennard
(merchant), Simon VanWinkle, Peter Lowber (tan-yard own-
er), James Henry, Philip Denny (landowner), Messer Beaston,
Daniel McDowell (cabinetmaker), Benjamin Farrow, William
Spearman (storekeeper-Old Duck Creek), Major Taylor, John
Palmatary (landowner), Benjamin Bassett, Robert Patterson
(shipowner), Thomas Hull, and Molleston Curry (landowner).
They elected the following as trustees: James Stevenson, John
Cole, James McDowell, Israel Peterson, George Kennard, Peter

Lowber and Simon VanWinkle. John Cole was appointed
chairman; James Stevenson, secretary; and George Kennard,
treasurer. Then two committees were appointed—one for
incorporation, and the other to wait upon Mr. McLane to
“obtain a deed for the property upon which our church now
stands”’, A Certificate of Incorporation was granted by an Act
of the Delaware Assembly and was recorded on March 23,
1799. The deed for the property was executed by Colonel

McLane on the following 9th of May.
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sins and were saved. Some of those persons were and some be-
came influential in the busy life of the Cross Roads. When the
time came for a discussion about a new name for their settle-
ment, they chose Smyrna because of the influence of Asbury’s
sermon.”

Lewis” Cross Roads was also renamed that year. It became
Kenton.

During 1806 Asbury’s congregation and the newly named
Smyrna Circuit had as its pastor a Reverend Richard Lyons—a
“vituperous man.” He was an autocrat to the ends of his
fingertips dispensing his abuses without mercy publicly to his
congregations. Sometimes he would expell a member without
a trial by his peers. In one of his pulpit tirades he so abused
members of the John Cummins family that they took um-
brage and withdrew from the church. Even his junior preacher,
Reverend William B. Lacey, did not escape malignancy. On
one occasion he simultaneously held four separate class meet-
ings in the four corners of the Smyrna church, Finally several
men of the circuit held a meeting at which time they agreed
to separately keep a record of his savings and doings. When
the conference met in Philadelphia these notes were presented.
They had been prepared by James Henry, William Lowber,
Steward Redman, Isaac Davis, James McDowell, and Israel
Peterson, Sr.. So thoroughly had the biography been prepared
that the conference removed him from the peninsula and sent
him to Pennsylvania as an assistant circuit preacher.

Dr. Cook’s Woods, location unknown, was the site of a
Camp Meeting which started on September 18, 1806, How
long the camp was in operation is not known. However, the
next year under the management of George Kennard, Timothy
Cummins, A. Ridgly, Joseph Whitby and John Merriot, an-
other such meeting was held in Spruance’s Wood, whose loca-
tion is not known. This meeting lasted for almost a month,
Thereafter such outdoor religious revivals were held annually
until 1836.

In 1807 Reverends James Ridgeway and Sylvester Hill
were the pastors, and in 1808 the circuit was served by
Thomas Walker and George Harmon. Smyrna Circuit, in 1809,
was placed on the Chesapeake District. Apparently Head of
Sassafras, Cecilton and the Line Stone Society (still meeting
at the Willson house) were added to its charge with Henry
White and Thomas Neal as preachers. Sylvester Hill and
William Williams came in 1810. On Sunday, April 25th of that
year, Reverend George Pickering who had served the circuit in
1792, accompanied by Bishop Asbury, came to collect funds
for a Methodist Chapel in Boston, Massachusetts. All of the
churches contributed liberally for the cause.

Christopher Spry, who had ministered to the Duck Creck
Society in 1790, retired for that field in 1804, He came to the
Duck Creek area to live, and subsequently he died. The date
of his death cannot be rightfully ascertained, but the remem-
brances of Mrs. Sarah Patterson Mason written in the Smyrna
Times in 1866 indicated that the year was 1810. He was buried
in Old Asbury Cemetery and was the first Methodist minister
to be interred there.

Abstinence, slavery and impressment were three major
topics of discussion in the church of that day. As early as
1805, a Quarterly Conference adopted a resolution ““to oppose
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by precept and example the daily use of spirituous liquors.”
Although there were few slaveholders among the Duck Creek
Methodists, much time was taken in considering the relation-
ship of master and slave. This was done because the church
required all of its slaveholding members to manumit their
slaves at a certain date. The citizens of Smyrna had not beén
directly affected by the incidents of local sailors being seized
by the British Navy. Yet they were deeply concerned about the
worsening conditions on the high seas. Therefore, along with
the General Church, memorials were written to the brethérn
of the English Methodist Church imploring them to exert
opposition to that practice.

By 1811, when Thomas Smith and Samuel Griffith were
the pastors, the country was fast drifting towards war, How-
ever, at the beginning of 1812 this community felt so secure
that a bank was established on East Commerce Street with
Judge Isaac Davis as one of the directors. At General Confer-
ence a report was given stating the condition of the circuit—
some older societies had passed out of existance or else had
merged with each other, while in addition several newer one
had been formed. The total number was 16 societies with an
aggregate membership (white and colored) of 710 souls. As-
bury, 144; Union, 100; Middletown-meeting in private home-
42; Lee’s Chapel, 56; Webster’s, 33; Kenton Society-privately
held-55; Farrow’s, 43; Blackiston’s, 44; Massey’s, 19; Head of
Sassafras, 34; Johnstown (location unknown), 24; Raymond’s,
67; Severson’s, 20; and Thoroughfare Neck, 29. Although not
attached to Smyrna Circuit, Central Church, near Moortown
(Cheswold) composed of Moors, was under the jurisdiction of
the Smyrna Circuit. George Sheets and William Ryder became
Smyrna Circuit pastors, while Piner Mansfield, one of Asbury’s
early saints, was licensed as a local preacher. The circuit was
returned to the Delaware district.

Smyrna, however did not escape the War of 1812, As it
was near the coast and Duck Creek, the inhabitants were
rather apprehensive about British action in this area. British
soldiers, embarking from British warships in the Delaware Bay
and River, frequently came up Duck Creek to raid the farm-
lands or attack the houses. They continued to such a degree
that in 1813 a company of volunteers, primarily recruited
from members of the Methodist faith, was organized in
Smyrna and sent to Bombay Hook to defend the island.
Denny Stevenson an early pillar of Asbury was elected as the
captain of this militia.

The War of 1812 continued until 1815, In that interim
the churches were served by John Walker and William Ryder
in 1813; Solomon Sharp, David Datley, and again William
Ryder in 1814, and John M’Combs and John Collins in 1815.

Reverend Solomon Sharp, one of the denominations most
forceful personalities, is considered by many historians to
have played a major role in shaping the early public image of
the Methodist Circuit riding preacher in Delaware and Eastern
Shore Maryland. Born in Caroline County, Maryland, April 6,
1771, he became a parson by 1791, and a presiding elder by
1808. Tall and robust with a commanding voice he delivered
his powerful sermons .with a singular note of authority, as if
he were conscious of his divine commission to “go into all the
world.” Yet he was kindly, well spoken, and loved by his

parishioners. In his latter years, Sharp was one of the most
noticeable and patriarchal figures in the Conference, still
walking straight and erect. Colonel Wilmer, an ex-Smyrnian,
writing about Solomon Sharp in 1880 says, “If he had lived
earlier, I believe that Father Sharp would have been a prophet.”

Bishop Francis Asbury, apparently accompanied by Rev-
erend Henry Boehm, stopped in the village in 1815 on his way
north. Whether he did or did not preach cannot be ascertained,
but we do know that at church he sat in his chair on a high
table so that he might be able to talk with the flock. An eye-
witness of that visit wrote that Asbury was pale, wrinkled,
gray and feeble, needing assistance much of the time. It was
Bishop Asbury’s last visit to Smyrna, for the next year he
died.

Lawrence McCombs and Samuel P. Lewis continued the
work of the circuit in 1816. They were followed by James
Moore, Thomas Miller and Edward Stout in 1817 and 18.

On January 29, 1817 by an Act of Assembly, Smyrna was
incorporated under a commission form of government. Three
men—James McDowell, Thomas Maberry and Henry Draper
were appointed Commissioners to hold an election at Smyrna
for three commissioners, a treasurer and an assessor.

The following were elected Commissioners—James McDow-
ell, Robert Patterson, William Kennedy; Treasurer—George
Walker and Assessor—Presley Spruance.

In Kenton the Methodists erected their first church build-
ing in 1818. It was a frame construction, twenty-four by sixty
feet, and stood at the end of the town on the right hand side
of the road which led to present Downs’ Chapel. The ground
was donated, and the structure was erected by Isaac Bucking-
ham, Reverend John Durborough and James Scotten. Previous-
ly the society had held their meetings (after the death of
Widow Howard) in the homes of Stradley and
James Scotten. By that year, 1818, Asbury Church, Smyrna
was also in need of expansion. The trustees voted to enlarge
the frame building, and the work was completed in 1819 while

- William Williams and Samuel Grace were the pastors.

Approximately twenty feet was added to the original
structure. One door, again, facing South was its only entrance.
However another door on the side of the building was cut

permitting an exit from the inside front of the church.

Inside there was but one aisle—a center one running from
the front door to within a few feet of the altar rail. On each
side of the aisle was a block of pews which reached to the
wall. They held nine persons to a side or eighteen across, Two
tin—platebstoves stood in the middle of the aisle, with pipes
and flues running vertically through the roof. The floor was
bare, the walls, although unplastered, were sheated with wood,
and an end balcony was reserved for the exclusive use of the
Negroes—whether free or slave. In the front there was a high
pulpit, but it had only a simple bench for the preacher, while
two “so called” captains’ chairs sat inside the altar, These
chairs, supposedly from the log cabin of James Stevenson, had
been used many times by Francis Asbury on his visits to the
village, and even then they were considered to be valuable
relics of the past. At the right hand of the pulpit, behind the
amen corner was the aforementioned side door. This faced
the alley and was used for egress by the aged who would
quietly leave the church after the usual hand-shaking at the
end of the service.

Methodism has generally become well established and
accepted by 1819. However they were still “looked down on”
by some members of other demoninations, and by the non-
churchgoers who the Methodist flatly labeled as sinners.
Letters and newspapers of that era reflect the attitude, “These
Methodists have queer ways—they shout and sing and are
happy in church, but once on the outside most of them are
glum looking, stern and devilishly pious. They are just plain—
plain. They condem the use by women of artifical flowers,
feathers or veils; feel that it is wrong to: wear gold rings and
chains, ride in fancy conveyances; live in pretentious houses;
labor on the Sabboth, even to cooking meals; chew tobacco;
use spirituous drinks, or even drink a glass of wine, wear
ruffled collars or cuffs and, if still the custom, silver buckles on
their shoes or belts. All of their meeting houses are bare, un-
comfortable and they usually sit on some back street. But we
must admire them, because they take no offense of their
enemies, and they daily seek to raise the sinner from the depths
of hell. But we suspect sometimes that these Methodists are
in league with the Quakers because the Friends still permit
them to use Quaker Meeting Houses, and these Methodists—
some of them—still use thee and thou when they speak to
their sisters and brothers in the faith.”

Although the women were segregated in the worship
service, they were just as active as the men in the work of a
Union Sunday School begun here in Smyrna in 1820. On
April 12th of that year, the Philadelphia Conference was
convened for the seventh time in the village. This meeting
came to Smyrna as the result of an invitation sent the year be-
fore by Robert Patterson and Daniel McDowell. These two
gentleman, did not quite fit the mold of an 1820 Methodist as
previously viewed. Patterson was wealthy both in land and
money, while McDowell, a well known master cabinetmaker,
was comfortably situated. Many of the members critized these
two men for using their influence in having the conference,
complaining that there were not enough accommodations in
the village. Patterson told them that if they did not wish to
assist in the lodging and feeding of the members, then he would
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do so himself. However, when the ministers did arrive ample
housing had been found, and Patterson was obliged “to enter-
tain” only seven of them.

Judge Isaac Davis, Asbury’s most wealthy and influential
member, also had quite a stir created in front of his ““preten-
tious” home on the day when conference began, That morning
many preachers arrived on horseback, in private carriages,
stagecoach, teams and hacks, The latter came from The Land-
ing after meeting the ships. In the midst of all this excitement
the villagers noticed an unusual conveyance coming up Main
Street. At last it was recognized as a “Gig and Tandum”
which was a light two-whecled pleasure carriage drawn by two
horses—one in front of the other. This high-styled conveyance
was just then being introduced into this section of Delaware,
and was used only by those wishing “to outrage the publick.”
On and on it came until it stopped before the door of Judge
Davis. From it alighted two of the plainest old fashioned
preachers of the conference. As they were entering the Judge’s
home they were questioned as to their using that stylish mode
of conveyance. They explained that the roads were in such
bad conditionsthat they had used this mode of traveling, for
convenience only,

The Friends again permitted the conference to use their
Meeting House while the pulpit of the church was occupied
three times a day by ministers who preached “profitable ser-
mons.” Among the many who were converted were Mrs.
Rhoda Corbitt, eldest daughter of Judge Issac Davis, Sallie
Bassett and Margaret Kennedy.

Sometime during the intervening months of May and
September, the latter two, while visiting friends in Wilmington
became acquainted with the plans of the newly organized
Sunday School in that town. Although Methodism in 1790 had
gone on record for the establishment of such a school not a
single one had been started on the Peninsula. When Sallie
Bassett, a Methodist, and Margaret Kennedy, a continuing
Presbyterian, returned to Smyrna, they immediately under-
took the establishment of a Union Sunday School. They went
together, both in the village and in the surrounding areas,
seeking those who would come. They visited the poor, re-
questing the attendance of their children; they sought out the
“urchins” on the street, and they enlisted the offsprings of the
well-to-do.

Finally success was theirs, and the Sunday School was
scheduled to open on September 10, 1820 while William
Williams and William Torbert, a Doverite, were the pastors.
The plans were to inaugurate the School at Mechanics Acade-
my. The Academy was a small frame building near the church,
and it too was reached by a lane leading from Ball Street. At
the conclusion of the session, the School was to move in
procession from the Academy to Asbury Church for the
preaching. However, on the day before the opening, a teacher
of the Mechanics Academy died, and out of respect that
building was not opened. Therefore the classes instead met in
a house on East Commerce Street, which was occupied through
the week by a charity school conducted by young ladies of
the village.

Margaret Kennedy was the first superintendent serving
until April of 1821. Sallie Bassett was the second, working
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until 1822 when she moved to Wilmington. Mary Patterson,
Mary Davis, Rebecca McDowell, Mary Bassett, Matilda Abbot
and Ann Curry, along with two young men, Joseph Farrow and
James A. Massey were the teachers. This was truly a Union
Sunday School, for it had as its teachers and pupils, members
of all demoninations and stations of life, All the students had
the liberty of choice for catechism, as none was forced upon
them. This institution operated spasmodically until 1827 when
it merged with the then newly formed Methodist Sunday
School. .

Some reports from the 1820 Conference are vague which
renders their interpretation difficult, but it is believed that the
circuit consisted of the following churches or societies: Ray-
monds, Muddy Branch, Severson’s, Thoroughfare Neck, being
called Friendship, Lee’s Chapel, Union, Asbury Chapel, north
of Cantwell’s Bridge (Odessa) towards St. Georges, Middle-
town, meeting in private homes, Head of Sassafras, Cecilton,
Massey, Johnstown (location unknown), Websters, Line Stone
Society, meeting in private homes, Blackiston’s, Kenton, a
society west of Dover meeting in private homes, Farrows and
Asbury, Smyrna.

Reverend William Ryder was returned in 1821, and had as
his junior preacher, Joseph Osborner. These two were again
returned in 1822 when the Middletown Society was organized
into a church. Azariah Foster, Andrew Dill, Thomas Merritt,
John Hays and Thomas Low were elected as trustees to acquire
and hold property in the name of that congregation. During
the same year a humble structure built of frame and costing
about $900.00 was erected for the religious meetings of the
people.

In 1823 Samuel Grace and Joseph Holdich, age 19, came,
By the time of the latter’s retirement in 1878, he had become
an outstanding Methodist personage. Holdich had earned a
Doctor of Divinity degree, taught at Wesleyan University,
traveled abroad, and authored several noted religious books
of his day. James Smith, a native Delawarean, and Edward
Stephenson were assigned in 1824, while in 1825 saw the re-
turn of Smith along with Walter B. Jones as his assistant;
Solomon Higgins and James Long ministered in 1826. During
those years the influences of those men of God caused one
Levi Scott of the Union Society to be converted in 1821, and
to give himself to the Lord’s work by becoming an itinerant
preacher among them. In 1827, Reverend Scott for the first
time attended a Philadelphia Conference. It opened in Smyrna
on April 27th, and marked the eighth time that the conference
had been convened in the village. So impressed was Scott with
those men and their proceeding that in afteryears he wrote:

“I met the Conference for the first time, in Smyrna, in
1827. It held its session in the Friend’s meeting house, a small,
plain building, in the outskirts of the village, the church being
reserved for religious services. Assembled in a plain house they
appeared a grave and plain body of men, not rude, but plain,
plain in dress, plain in speech, plain in manners. They were the
representatives of plain churches and a plain people. Not one
of them had ever sat on a cushioned seat, or walked on a
carpeted aisle, or stood on a carpeted platform, or kneeled on
a cushioned kneeling stool in a Methodist house of public
worship. They were clad almost to a man in what has been

called the Methodist preacher uniform of that day. The
broad brimmed hats did not, of course, appear, as they were
in Conference session. But their coats were either straight or
round breasted, or a modification between the two, single
breasted also, that would button to the chin. Their neck dress
consisted of a plain white cravat, with or without stock, con-
cealing the collar of the shirt, and presenting in front a plain,
smooth surface, or a single or double bow according to the
varying taste of the parties. The hair betokened nothing in its
adjustment, but the most modest and natural plainness, being
combed down smoothly over the forehead, and their cleanly
shaven faces exhibited neither mustache, goatee, or any other
fanciful arrangement. Among the body present were Laurence
McCombs, “Father” Boehm, Thomas Ware and Solomon
Sharp, a most venerable, but eccentric man who wore his hair
parted in the middle and hanging in heavy ringlets upon his
broad and massive shoulders.”

The sessions were conducted with calm, while again re-
vivals and altar calls were held in Asbury Church. That year
saw the implementation of the Sunday School Resolution of
1790, by the establishment of a permanent Sunday School
Society at Asbury. John Smith and Joseph Iliff were the pas-
tors in 1828, and in 1829 the venerable Solomon Sharp was
again returned to the Smyrna Circuit. His junior preacher was
Henry G. King. That year the circuit petitioned the District
Conference for authority to purchase a dwelling for the senior
preacher. Up until that date the ministers were “entertained”
by various members of the circuit congregation. Many of those
men-of-God most assuredly must have married and had
children, yet there is a dearth of evidence concerning their
married state. Nonetheless they and their families were roomed
and boarded by the brethern and sisters in the denomination.
After 1829, the evidence points to the fact that the junior
preachers and their families, if any, were housed with the
senior ministers.

In the late 1820’s two other chapels were erected by socie-
ties which were still holding meetings in private homes. One
such group was in operation west of Dover. Sometime before
1829 a church was erected by them, but it was not until
October 10th of that year that Joseph Rash sold 125 square
perches to Myers Carson, Joseph Clark, John Jones, John
Townsend and Robert Hargadine as trustees. The meeting
house was immediately known as Rash’s Chapel, later it was
renamed McEliver’s in honor of a circuit preacher who had
ministered there, and by 1880 it was known as Asbury. The
absolute site is not definitely known, but evidence points to
the assumed conclusion that that meeting house might have
been the building which is now known as Victory Chapel near
Pearson’s Corner.

Mr. Willson, at whose home the Line Stone Society had
met for so many years, passed to his reward in or around 1820.
After his demise the members held their prayer and praise
services in other private homes, and by the late 1820 the con-
gregation had grown to the point where they felt that they
needed a church building. They therefore petitioned Grafton
L. Delaney, of Baltimore, to sell them a piece of land. The
Delaneys held extensive acreage in that area both in Delaware
and Maryland and many heads of the households (including
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the deceased Mr. Willson) were tenants ot that family. However
Mr, Delaney did not sell them the land but instead he donated
it to John Eaton, Thomas Meriam, Robert Bailey, Thomas
Lamb and Jesse Moffitt as trustees for the Line Stone Society.,
A log church, twenty four by thirty feet was soon erected at
very little cost, as the men themselves performed most of the
tasks. By 1832 the chapel had acquired a new name—
“Dulany’s.”

(Many old references have mistakenly used the name
Lime Stone for Line Stone.)

As the result of the circuits petition a parsonage was se-
cured in part of a double house (still standing but much alter-
ed) on the northwest corner of Main and South Streets.
Whether or not it was owned or rented is not clearly stated,
but Reverend Solomon Sharp occupied it first in 1830. William
Connelly was his associate. Eighteen thirty also saw the begin-
nings of a new society—Cantwell’s Bridge (Odessa). Reverend
Sharp was not too pleased with that body of believers when
they sought ways and means by which they could erect a
meeting house. Sharp felt that those dozen or more souls
could more¢ profitably take part in the prayer and praise
services at Union. Nevertheless they were determined and
continued in their efforts.

In 1831 and 32 Reverend Richard Greenbank was the
pastor, having a different junior preacher each year—William
Connelly, 1831, James Nickolas, 1832. At thirty eight years
of age, Richard Greenbank was still filled with youthful
enthusiasm and fire, for he had been a backslider who had
become a rejuvenated, born-again Christian. Born in Yorkshire,
England in 1793 of parents, who were among the first mem-
bers of a society formed in Northern England by John Wesley,
Greenbank, after being rooted and grounded in faith, fell from
Grace after his arrival in Philadelphia in 1817. However in 1823
while traveling in Maryland, he chanced upon a revival camp-
meeting at Rattlesnake Springs, near Baltimore, and was re-
converted. He entered the ministry in 1829 in the Baltimore
Conference; was transferred to the Philadelphia Conference;
and was assigned to the Smyrna Circuit of the Chesapeake
District. It was during Reverend Greenbank’s tenure that the
Cantwell Society erected its meeting house. The building was
thirty by forty feet, and was constructed from second-handed
bricks obtained from an abandoned barn. Upon its completion
the bricks were whitewashed. The interior was plain and bare.
Greenbank did not see his work completed because he was
transferred to Queen Ann’s.. However, his talents were many
and later in life he worked and earned two Masters’ degrees—
one in art and the other in medicine. He died in Philadelphia
in 1868.

Also during Greenbank’s stay on the circuit, the Sunday
School, after having had five years of interrupted existance,
was officially organized. Dr. John D. Perkins was the president;
Pennell Coombe, secretary; Rev. Ephraim Jefferson, treasurer,
There were 18 teachers and 188 pupils.

Reverend Solomon Sharp was again returned in 1823,
It was he, assisted by Reverend Robert Anderson, who be-
came responsible for the completion of the Cantwell work,
begun and carried on by Greenbank. Later that year the meet-
ing house was dedicated. In the meantime the Circuit had



purchased a lot of land on Delaware Street from Judge Isaac
Davis. On it a parsonage was built; (site not known) said build-
ing served as the residence of the preachers until Smyrna was
made a station in 1845,

The use of spirituous drinks has always been the bane of
Methodism, and Duck Creek Cross Road and Smyrna was no
exception. As early as 1808 Methodist preachers had delivered
scathing sermons against its sellers and consumers. On one
occasion in the 18teens a sermon against liquor was so effective
that John Cummins, who owned the tavern which was located
at the northwest corner of Ball and Main Street, returned to
the premises, (still standing known as The Milk Store) and in
holy wrath dumped the entire spirituous contents of his tavern
into the street. Unfortunately, village urchins, who roamed
the streets night and day, suddenly appeared and immediately
scooped up and drank the mixed venom of Satan.

War against “demon rum” was waged off and on through-
out the years, not only by the Methodist preachers, but also
by the ministers of the other denominations. Finally in 1833
a great change of tactics was undertaken. Several prominent
citizens of the village, through reading and corresponding
learned about the establishment of a society who aimed it
was to fight spirituous liquor on a national basis. Therefore
Judge Isaac Davis, Nehemiah Stockley, Benjamin Coombe and
William Ringgold, along with other interested members of the
community organized the Smyrna Branch of the Delaware
Temperance Society. Article III is quoted “The members of
this Society do hereby pledge themselves that they will not
(except as a medicine in case of bodily infirmaty, or on
Sacramental occasions) use distilled Spirits, wines or malt
liquors, themselves or procure them for the use of their fami-
lies, or provide them for the entertainment of their friends or
for persons in their employ; and that in all suitable ways they
will discountenance the use and Sale of them in the Commun-
ity.”

This organization several years later admitted women to
the fold, and under their leadership the society, in one form or

- another, continued to operate until the 1940’s.

Eighteen hundred thirty-four saw the return again of Sharp,
who this time had Benjamin Benson as his junior preacher. The
following year, 1835, Reverend Sharp, because of failing
health, retired from the active ministry and made Smyrna his
abode. In that year Reverends Eliphalet Reed and Zerubabel
Gaskill were sent to the Smyrna Circuit which had had one
more appointment added—Delaware City. Reverend Reed was
returned in 1836, but Gaskill was replaced by William Allen,
a native of Sussex County. By that year the records seem to
indicate that Middletown, Cantwell’s Bridge, Delaware City,
Sassafras and Massey were no longer attached to the Smyrna
Circuit, and that the Asbury Society north of Cantwell’s
Bridge, as well as the Muddy Branch one were no longer
active,

Early in 1836 the Reverend Solomon Sharp delivered a
sermon at Asbury. His text was from the fourth chapter of
Hebrews. After the conclusion of the service he was heard to
say, “Now I feel as if my work was done.” On the evening of
March 12th, he retired in seemingly good health, During the
night his wife was awakened by his hard breathing. She tried
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to arouse him, but her efforts were in vain. Alarmed by this she
summoned some of the family, but before they could get to
his bedside, he had died—March 13, 1836. The cause of his
death was due to an attack of asthma. With great sorrow his
remains were laid to rest in Asbury Cemetery. For over a
decade the congregation felt the loss of his presence from
among them.

July of that year also marked the closing of Methodist
Camp Meetings in the Middletown-Smyrna-Dover area. Reasons
for the ending of those evangelistic services have not been
found, and there are not hints given in any sources from which
one may attempt to draw assumptions.

While William Allen and Vincent Shepherd were the pas-
tors in 1837, the Leipsic Congregation was organized. That
church absorbed and replaced the partially inactive one at
Muddy Branch, Joseph Humphreys along with Joseph Mann
were stationed in 1838, while in 1839 Humphreys was re-
turned. However, Mann was replaced by William C. Thomas,

Although the boundaries of Smyrna in 1839 were still
one quarter of a mile in each direction from the Four Corners,
many changes had taken place within the decade. The popula-
tion had increased, many new homes had been built both
within and without the village limits. Asbury, the first religious
church of the village had been joined by the building St.
Peter’s Protestant Episcopal, while the Society of Friends and
the Presbyterians had gone on the decline. Several small inde-
pendent businesses had been started but Samuel Catts and
Benjamin Benson outdid them all in gross business and receipts.
The manufacturing of carriages was a booming success. Steam-
boat service from Smyrna Landing to Philadelphia had been
inaugurated; the post office had been moved from The Indian
Head Hotel; two banks had been in operation with Judge Isaac
Davis holding positions in both of them. He was the president
of the Bank of Smyrna, and a director in the Commercial
Bank. However by 1837 both banks had merged into the
Bank of Smyrna which weathered the panic of 1837,

Free western land and, as stated before, liquor were gener-
ally discussed, while most citizens either idolized or hated
“Old Hickory” Jackson, in or out of office. Most of the
villagers, who had personally known Francis Asbury, had died,
or moved away—James Stevenson, John Cole, George Kennard,
Allen McLane, Abraham and Rebecca Redman, Peter Lowber,
Solomon Sharp, Abram Pierce, Rebecca Bennett, Thomas
Lamdin, his wife and sons, and Israel Peterson. Their places in
the church and in the village were being filled by their children
or by newcomers among who were: Denny Stevenson, Joseph
Griffith, Samuel B. Wright, George Walker, Herbert Eliason,
James and Mary E. Day, John and Susan Millaway, Henry
Hoffecker, Alexander and Mary Faries and James Maberry,
Reverend Piner Mansfield and Reverend Ephraim Jefferson,
along with Judge Isaac Davis and Benjamin Coombe were the
remaining links with the past.

In late 1838 the members of Asbury realized that their old
frame meeting-house was poorly situated, and that it was out
of harmony with the churches which were being built in other
communities. For several months the matter was discussed
and then in February or March of 1839, before the convening

of the Philadelphia Conference, a congregational meeting was
held. The minutes of that meeting follow:
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Reverend Joshua Humphrey was reassigned to the Smyrna
Circuit, but Joseph Mann was removed. His place was filled by
William C. Thomas. These two then began to chart the course
for “this new brick church.” The subscription list (modern day
pledges) was discussed, but action on it was not undertaken. A
serious question arose with its outcome almost completely
jeopardizing the building program. No sooner had the list come
before the congregation and the October Quarterly Conference
than a triangle of propositions were proposed—“Stay where
we are, and redo!” “Stay where we are, remove and build!”
“Not so, find a new site to build a new church!” These three
each gained supporters with no decision being reached.

In 1840 James A. Ayres replaced Humphrey, but Thomas
remained. Smyrna Circuit was placed on a newly-formed
Wilmington District; however in the following year the district
lines were redrawn and Smytna was attached to Easton. Ayers
returned with James L. Houston as his junior preacher. By
1841 both the congregation and the trustees had become static
and adamant in their respective positions. Some even threaten-
ed to resign their official position if the old church were not
used; others uttered the same threat should a new brick one
not be erected, while several members stated that they would
go elsewhere if the strife did not cease between Christian
brethern but to no avail. So, they departed.

In 1842 Reverend Houston came back as the senior minis-
ter with Henry Sutton as his junior partner. By the end of
their tenure in April of *43 calmer thoughts had prevailed, with
a so-called stopgap measure having been adopted. All groups
agreed that the new brick church was not only needed, but it
was also a necessity; all agreed that the subscription list should
be acitvated (which it was), and all finally agreed that the
church should be erected. Judiciously the site location had not
been specified. Several trustees, whose names were not recorded
had quietly begun to hold conversation with Dr. Fisler for the
purpose of choosing and obtaining a parcel of land. Finally in
1843, under the pastorate of Reverends John Lednum and
Henry Hudson, the site was settled upon—a new one. By
design or by coincident it was originally part of the land that
was owned by James Stevenson, at whose cabin still standing,
Francis Asbury had proclaimed the gospel to Duck Creek
Cross Roads. At the time of its purchase it contained several
small houses, one of which had been the home of Denny
Stevenson. After the purchase price had been paid, Dr. Fisler,
as his contribution to the church, rebated part of the pur-
chase price. By some means, not disclosed, the trustees learned
that the clay on the old site could be used for the burning of
bricks. They therefore voted to do so, and by that action help-
ed to heal the breach among the three fractions.

In early May of 1844, while Reverends John Lednum and
John Bell were the ministers, the ground-breaking ceremonies
were conducted. On the 24th of that same month the corner-
stone was laid after the holding of religious services consisting
of songs and prayers. Reverend Lednum, under whose leader-
ship this venture was launched, was the sort of preacher-admin-
istrator who was blessed with the faculty for handling difficult
situations. He was a diligent gentleman who had been blessed
with patience, perseverance and a disciplined mind. Well read
in both the religious and secular fields, he could freely and
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erected, about 50 yards north of present building, in 1785. Second church, built 1838, was opposite
present site on Maryland side. Present church was incorporated December 31, 1853 and building
dedicated in 1874. It was improved in 1915 and again in 1937. It is a one story frame structure. First
settled clergyman, Rev. Zach M. Webster, 1887-90; educated at Wesley Collegiate Institute, Dover.
Minutes, 1874--, 2 vols.; Register, 1874--, 2 vols.; in possession of pastor, Rev. Arthur G. Thomas.
Sunday School, 1935--, 5 vols.; in possession of Mrs. Arthur G. Thomas. Records of incorporation
and deeds: Sussex Co. Recorder’s office, Deeds Record: vol.BN86, p. 212; vol. BZ99, p.504; vol.
BBO114, p. 43; vol. DIG 289, p. 38. (Any Records which may have been kept 1784-1873
missing).

216.  ASBURY METHODIST EPISCOPAL CHURCH, 1786--, Mt. Vernon St., Smyrna.

Organized 1786. Incorporated March 4, 1799. First building, a frame structure on N. Del. St.
erected in 1786. In 1843 a brick church was erected on the site of the old church. In 1872 the present
building was dedicated. it was remodeled in 1925. It is a one story brick building with steeple, bell,
and gallery. First settled clergyman, Rev. Joseph Everett, 1791-1803.

Minutes, 1900--, 1 vol.; Sunday School, 1900--, 1 vol.; in possession of secretary, Harvey Jones.
Register, 1845--, 4 vols.; in possession of pastor, Rev. James W. Colona. Ladie's Aid Society, 1929--,
1 vol.; in possession of president, Mrs. H. Sherwood. Records of incorporation and deeds: Kent Co.
Recorder’s office, Deeds Record; vol. F2, pp. 134 and 187; vol. V2, p 126; vol. X2, p. 131; vol. B3, p.
138; vol. F4, p. 279; vol. T4, pp. 276 and 272; vol. D5, p. 119; vol.F6, p.198; vol. G7, pp. 235 and
257; vol. $10, pp. 316 and 319; vol. V10, p.105; vol. W11, p. 183; vol. C12, p. 58; vol. B14, p. 64.

217.  SALEM METHODIST EPISCOPAL CHURCH, 1787--, Christiana and Coochs Bridge Rd.,
Christiana.

Organized 1787. Services were held in members’ homes until 1807, when church was
incorporated and present building dedicated. Remodeled 1849 and 1884. It is a two story brick
structure. First settled clergyman, unknown.

Minutes, 1787-1925, 2 vols.; 1934--, 1 vol.; Register, 1787-1925, 3 vols.; 1934--, 1 vol ;
Financial, 1757-1925, 3 vols.; 1934--, 1 vol.; in possession of pastor, Rev. Richard M. Green. Sunday
School, 1934--, 1 vol.; in possession of Helen Johnson, Newark. Record of incorporation : New Castle
Co. Recorder’s office, Deeds Record: vol. F3, p. 50.

218. LEWES METHODIST EPISCOPAL CHURCH, 1788--, 4" and Chestnut Sts., Lewes.

Methodist services were held in this locality as early as 1774, the meetings being held in private
homes. Congregation was incorporated March 31, 1788 and a smali frame church was erected on
Shankland's Lane. This was called Ebenezer Church. In 1791 the present organization buiit a frame
church at 3" and Church Ln., and called it Bethel Church. For a number of years services were
alternately held in the two churches until Ebenezer became defunct and the congregation joined with
Bethel. In 1828 the church was moved to a site two and a half blocks east of the present church and
rebuilt. This was used until 1872 when a new frame building was erected. Present building dedicated
1910. A one story gray stone structure with belfry and bell. Gothic style. First settled clergyman, Rev.
Thomas J. Prettyman, 1880-82.
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erected, about S50 yards north of present building, in 1765. Second church,
built 1838, was opposite prisent site on Maryland side. Present chruch was
incorporated December 31, 1853 and building dedicated in 1874. It was im-
proved in 1915 and again in 1937. It 1s a one stroy frame structure. First
settled clergyman, Rev. Zech M. Webster, 1887-90; educated at Wesley Colle-
glate Institute, Dover.

Minutes, 1874-—. 2 vols.; Register, 1874--, 2 vols.; in possession of
pastor, Rev. Arthur G. Thomas. Sunday Schook, 1935--, vols.; in possession
of Mrs. Arthur G. Thomas. Records of incorporation and deeds: Sussex Co.
Recorder's office, Deeds Record; vol. BN86, p. 212; vol. BZ99, p. 504; vol.
BBO1l4, p. 43; vol., DIO289, p. 38.

216. ASBURY METHODIST EPISCOPAL CHURCH, 1786--~, Mt. Vermon St., Smyrna

Organized 1786. Incorporated March 4, 1799. First Building, a frame
structure on present site, erected in 1786. 1In 1843 a brick church was
erected on the site of the old church. In 1872 the present bullding was
dedicated. It. was remodeled in 1925. It is a one? story brick building with
steeple, bell, and gallery. First settled clergyman, Rev. Joseph Everett,
1791 - 1803.

Minutes, 1900--, 1 vol.; Sunday Schook, 1900--, vol.; in possession
of secretary, Harvet Jones. Register, 1845--, 4 vols.; in possession of
pastor, Rev, James W. Colona. Ladies' Aid Soclety, 1929--, 1 vol.; In pos-
ession of president, Mrs. H. Sherwood. Records of incorporation and deeds;
Kent Co. Recorder's office, Deeds Record; vol. P2, pp.l154 and 187; vol. W2,
p. 1263 vol.X2, p.131; vol.E3, p. 136; vol.F4, p. 279; vol. T4, pp. 276
and 279; vol. D5, p. 119; vol. F6, p. 196; vol.G7, pp. 255 and 257; vol.
S10, pp. 316 and 319; vol. V10, p.l105; vol. Wll, p.183; vol. Cl2, p-58;
vol. Bl4, p.64,

217. SALEM METHODIST EPISCOPAL CHRUCH, 1787--, Christiana and Coochs Bridge
Rd., Christiana.

Organized 1787. Services were held in members' homes until 1807, when
church was incorporated and present building dedicated. Remodeled 1848 and
1894. It 45 a two story brick structure. First settled clergyman, unknown.

Minutes, 1767-1925, 2 vols.; 1934-—, 1 vol.; Register, 1787-1925, 3
ovls.; 1934-—, 1 vol.; Financial, 1787-1925, 3 vols,; 1934--, 1l vol.; in
possession of pastor, Rev. Richard M. Green. Sunday School, 1934--, 1 vol.;
in possession of Helen Johmson, Mewark. Record of incorporation: new Castle
Co. Recorder's office, Deeds Record: vol. F3,50.

218. LEWES METHODIST EPISCOPAL CHURCH, 1788--, 4th and Chestnut Sts., Lewes.

Methodist services were held in this localicy as early as 1774, the meet-
ings being held in private homes. Congregatlon was incorporated March 31,
1788 and a small frame church was erected on Shankland's Lane. This was called
Ebenizer Church. In 1791 the present organization built a frame church at 3rd
and Church Sts., and called it Bethel Church. For a number of years services
were alternaterly held in the two churches untll Ebenezer became defunct and
the congragation joined with Bethel. In l828 the church was moved to a site
two and a half blocks east of the present churhc and rebuilt. This was used
until 1872 when a new frame building was erected. Present building dedicated
1910, A one story gray stome structure with belfry and bell. Gothic style.
First settled clergyman, Rev. Thomas J. Trettyman, 1880-82,
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submit the proposed changes to the La-
bor-Management Committee, which
must approve the revisions befare they
can be adopted. The Labor-Management
Committee consists of 20 memhers with
10 representing the union employees and
10 representing the state. While tlre
unions select the labor members, the
state selects members from agency man-
agement leaving rio representation from
the state's non-union lahor force.
Representative Dave Ennis and [ have
requested a meeting with Governor
Carper to discuss the feasibility of ad-
dressing this oversight in the merit revi-
sion process. Our Commitiee continues
to solicit imput from state employees both
union and non-union in order to ad-
equately revise these merit rules. Com-
ments from any state employee may be
oral or in written form and forwarded to
Margaret Moore, Office of the Speaker of

the House of Representatives, Legislative
Hali, Dover, Delaware 19903, phone 302-
739-4267.

Representative Dave Ennis and 1
formed an informal task force to review
a nurnber of personnel issues that came
to the Speaker’s attention during the flrst
session of the 138th General Assembly.
Last January, we introduced House Con-
current Resolution No. 37 which created
a 13 member Legislative Commiitee on
Personnel Practices which formalized the
previous task force. ’

Delaware taxpayers deserve effictency,
productivity, and responsiveness from
state government offices. This can only
be accomplished through a nurtured
workforce that is fairly administered. 1
feel the recommendations to be submit-
ted in our committee’s January final re-
port if implemented, will assist greatly
in reaching that goal.

Historic marker ceremony at Old Asbury

The public is most cor-
dially invited to attend the
unveiling ceremony of a
State of Delaware Historic
Marker at the site of Old
Asbury Methodist Episco-
pal Church and Cemetery
an North Delaware Street

in Smyrna.

The event will take place
on Sunday, October 20 at
3:15 p.m., following home-
coming services at Asbury
United Methodist Church.
In case of rain, the cer-
emony will be held in the

%

sanctuary of Asbury after
the 2 p.m. song fest,

Mr. C. Russell McCabe of
the Division of Historical
and Cultural Affairs is'In
charge of the Historic
Markers Program.
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